
1

August 25, 2014

FC
Agenda Item No. 6(B)



Finance Committee
Meeting Minutes

Esteban L. Bovo, Jr. (13) Chair; Juan C. Zapata (11) Vice Chair; Commissioners Sally 
A. Heyman (4), and Dennis C. Moss (9)

Wednesday, June 25, 2014 9:30 AM Commission Chamber

Stephen P. Clark 
Government Center
111 N.W. 1st Street
Miami, FL  33128CLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Esteban L.  Bovo, Jr., Sally A. Heyman, Dennis C. Moss, Juan C. 
Zapata.

None.

None.

None.Members Excused:  

Members Late:  

Members Absent:  

Members Present:

None.Members Absent County Business:

MINUTES PREPARED BY1

Alan Eisenberg, Commission Reporter
305-375-2510

Report:

INVOCATION AS PROVIDED IN RULE 5.05 
(H)

1A

Chairman Bovo led the Committee in the 
Invocation.

Report:

ROLL CALL1B

Chairman Bovo called the meeting to order at 
9:47 a.m. 

Board of County Commissioners Chairwoman 
Sosa along with Commissioners Souto and Suarez 
were also in attendance

In addition to the Committee members, the 
following staff members were present: Deputy 
Mayor Edward Marquez; Budget Director 
Jennifer Moon; County Attorney Robert Cuevas; 
First Assistant County Attorney Abigail Price-
Williams; Assistant County Attorneys Geri Bonzon-
Keenan and Gerald Heffernan; and Deputy Clerk 
Alan Eisenberg.

Report:

Page 1 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

2



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE1C

Commissioner Heyman led the Committee in the 
Pledge of Allegiance

Report:

REASONABLE OPPORTUNITY FOR THE 
PUBLIC TO BE HEARD AS PROVIDED IN 
RULE 6.06

1D

Chairman Bovo inquired whether it was 
appropriate for Community Based Organization 
(CBO) representatives to address this Committee 
in a public hearing at today’s (6/25) meeting, and 
if so, whether they would be precluded from 
speaking during the budget process. 

Chairman Bovo noted that Assistant County 
Attorney Geri Bonzon-Keenan advised him that 
the meeting was open to the public and that CBO 
representatives would be given approximately one 
minute to present their concerns.

The public hearing was opened for comments 
following the appropriate departmental budget 
presentations. 

After closing the public hearing and expressing his 
appreciation for everyone’s participation, 
Chairman Bovo noted that there would be another 
opportunity to address the County Commission at 
the budget hearings.   

Chairman Bovo pointed out the County’s 
obligation to deliver services to the community, 
noting that the upcoming budget process would be 
difficult taking into consideration the proposed ten 
percent ($75 million) Fiscal Year 2014-15 budget 
gap.

Report:

SPECIAL PRESENTATION1E

Page 2 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

3



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Presented
141482

1E1

Chairman Bovo explained the purpose of these 
budget meetings was for County departments to 
inform the County Commission about their current 
operations and budget projections before making 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 budget decisions.

Ms. Jennifer Moon, Budget Director, Office of 
Management and Budget presented a PowerPoint 
update on the current status of the budget 
development process.  She noted that the FY 2014-
15 budgets assumed no employee concessions and 
all snap back provisions would be returned to 
collective bargaining unit employees.  Ms. Moon 
also noted that the proposed budget assumed no 
millage rate increase.  She proceeded to explain 
that there was a $208,000 preliminary gap in the 
proposed budget and described the items which 
contributed toward that gap.

Ms. Moon indicated that the budget projections 
were constantly changing.  She presented various 
sources of new revenues and an option to adjust 
the millage rates, yet keeping the overall rate 
unchanged.  Ms. Moon explained that $130 
million of the budget gap was already closed 
through an organizational transformation process 
and other cost saving measures.  She proceeded to 
present options being considered to address the 
remaining $75 million budget deficit.  Ms. Moon 
said that approximately 700 positions would be 
eliminated but the specific number of employees 
that would be laid off was unknown.  She pointed 
out that services and positions could be bought 
back by eliminating the snap back provisions 
and/or changes to the current healthcare plan.

Esteban L.  Bovo, Jr.
BUDGET PRESENTATIONS BY THE FOLLOWING 
DEPARTMENTS:

MIAMI-DADE POLICE  
MIAMI-DADE FIRE & RESCUE
CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION
WATER AND SEWER
AVIATION
ELECTIONS
COMMUNITY INFORMATION AND OUTREACH
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
COUNTY ATTORNEY 
OFFICE OF BCC CHAIR AND RESPECTIVE OFFICES 
ETHICS COMMISSION 
OFFICE OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL

Special Presentation

Report:

Page 3 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

4



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Ms. Moon said every department had evaluated 
how they could provide their core services in the 
best possible manner.   She noted that the 
projected budget considered the need to deliver 
services expected by the community.  Ms. Moon 
reiterated that all concessions would be returned 
to collective bargaining unit employees and 
millage rates would remain flat in the proposed 
budget. 

Ms. Moon presented the status of the FY 2014-15 
budget development process.  She said the budget 
would be released following the July 1, 2014 
preliminary tax roll and that she did not anticipate 
significant changes at that time.  Ms. Moon noted 
information would be provided at that time on 
millage rate adjustments and maintenance of 
effort requirements that are driven by millage 
rates and community redevelopment area 
payments.  She noted that a public hearing on 
setting the millage rates was scheduled for July 
15, 2014 and that the Truth In Millage (TRIM) 
rates would also be approved that day. 

Commissioner Moss pointed out that he made 
community based organizations (CBO) aware of 
the current budget difficulties and the potential 
impact to their funding.  He asked that everyone 
present in the Commission Chambers that was 
representing a CBO to please rise.   Commissioner 
Moss noted that he believed CBO’s should be 
involved in the budget process and that the County 
Commission gained an appreciation for the 
valuable services CBO’s provided to this 
community, noting those services were often 
provided at a lower cost than the County.

Commissioner Suarez noted that the normal 
workforce attrition rate was five percent in the 
private sector and questioned amount of attrition 
that was built into the County’s budget.  

Ms. Moon responded that the attrition rate varied 
amongst County departments; that the rate was 
already built into department budget estimates; 
that some of the 700 positions recommended for 
elimination were related to employee attrition; 
and that no additional positions could be restored 
beyond the employee retirement attrition rate 
already identified.  

In response to Commissioner Suarez’ question 
whether there was a ten percent salary reduction 
included for all County employees in the proposed 

Page 4 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

5



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

budget, Ms. Moon responded that the reduction 
was part of the collective bargaining unit policy.  
She said her discussion pertained to balancing the 
budget and assumed no salary reductions and no 
bargaining unit concessions.  Ms. Moon noted that 
any savings realized through collective bargaining 
unit negotiations could be used to buy back 
service and employee reductions.  She also 
clarified that the $75 million budget deficit did not 
assume a ten percent salary reduction or any 
employee concessions.

Commissioner Suarez pointed out that salaries 
paid by the County Attorney’s office were 
approximately double the amount paid by other 
agencies and that 65 attorney’s received salaries 
exceeding $200,000.   He questioned whether 
Administration proposed any salary reductions for 
County employees at the highest salary level.

Deputy Mayor Edward Marquez responded that 
there was no current plan to reduce salaries of the 
highest paid employees.

Commissioner Suarez noted for the record that he 
would not vote for a budget which did not reduce 
the salaries of the highest paid employees and 
would reduce the salaries of employees paid under 
$50,000.

Ms. Moon explained that the budget contained a 
recommendation that all non-bargaining unit 
employees would continue to receive their current 
concessions, including: no flex pay, no premium 
pay, a 5 percent health care contribution (10 
percent for Deputy Mayors), no merit increases 
and no longevity bonus. 

Board of County Commissioners (BCC) 
Chairwoman Sosa inquired and Ms. Moon 
confirmed that $76 million was needed to balance 
the budget.   

BCC Chairwoman Sosa questioned the amount of 
funds that would be needed to restore the 
concessions to collective bargaining unit 
employees to which Ms. Moon responded that it 
would require approximately $40 million from the 
General Fund.   

In response to BCC Chairwoman Sosa’s inquiry 
about the proposed Community Based 
Organization (CBO) and Mom and Pop program 
budget reductions, Ms. Moon said that all 
currently funded CBOs and the Mom and Pop 

Page 5 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

6



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

program would receive a ten percent reduction to 
their current funding in the proposed budget.  

BCC Chairwoman Sosa questioned whether there 
were any positions held by retiring employees or 
vacant positions that could be eliminated to which 
Ms. Moon explained that these positions were 
already identified and considered in the budget 
projections.

BCC Chairwoman Sosa asked Ms. Moon and 
Deputy Mayor Marquez for a report on whether 
County departments were adhering to the 
previously adopted resolution which required a 
5% budget reduction and a 7% reduction without 
affecting direct services to the community.

BCC Chairwoman Sosa inquired about the impact 
of the budget on the specialized Police 
Department units.    

Ms. Moon responded that entire units would not 
be eliminated; however, there were certain 
positions staffed by sworn officers that could be 
performed by non-sworn officers.

BCC Chairwoman Sosa commended the Finance 
Committee for their budget preparation efforts, 
noted this process would provide information for 
the County Commission to make appropriate 
budget decisions. 

Commissioner Heyman said that the County 
should work with CBOs to get the best return for 
the money spent.  She mentioned that the five large 
CBOs (United Way, Dade Foundation, Women’s 
Fund, Alliance for Aging and Children’s Trust) 
already received a significant amount of County 
funding and they should be asked to identify the 
unfunded, underfunded and disenfranchised 
community needs.  Commissioner Heyman noted 
this recommendation would ensure the delivery of 
quality services Countywide and would identify 
duplicitous and disingenuous services.  

Ms. Heyman pointed out that most CBOs exceeded 
their expectations by delivering community 
services with scarce resources.  She said that 
additional oversight was needed to ensure the best 
return for limited County resources to address the 
continuing needs of this community.   
Commissioner Heyman indicated that she 
supported taking care of CBOs that were doing a 
good job and getting rid of those who were not, 
rather than imposing across the board reductions. 

Page 6 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

7



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Chairman Bovo inquired about the amount of 
money that was being proposed to increase the 
Library District budget and the impact upon the 
Fire District.

Ms. Moon responded that the Library District 
would gain approximately $11 million and there 
would be no FY 2014-15 service impact to the Fire 
District because funds would be taken from its 
contingency reserve.  

Chairman Bovo questioned whether the County 
was funding the reserve accounts as required. 

Ms. Moon responded that the County was not 
adding to the Emergency Contingency reserve; 
that the General Fund reserve was being 
maintained at less than 5 percent, the lowest 
possible recognized level; and not creating 
reserves in the Library District.  She said the Fire 
District was the only reserve account that would 
be created that did not currently exist. 

Chairman Bovo inquired about the amount of 
money that was taken from FY 2013-14 reserves to 
balance the budget.

Ms. Moon responded that $9 million was taken 
from the Emergency Contingency reserve and that 
a significant amount was taken from the self-
insurance fund.  

The Committee proceeded to hear the 
departmental budget presentations.

WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT
Mr. Bill Johnson, Director, Water and Sewer 
Department (WASD) indicated the FY 2014-15 
operating budget included a 6 percent increase to 
retail customers and a 4 percent increase to 
wholesale customers, generating $26 million 
additional revenue.  He noted a $690 million 
operating budget and a $306 million capital 
budget.  Mr. Johnson said that mechanisms were 
needed to annually spend down $350 to $500 
billion of the $12.6 billion in capital funding and 
to be accountable for this expenditure. 

Mr. Johnson noted that 12 part time positions 
would be converted into full time positions, thus 
increasing the headcount from 2,479 to 2,491 
employees.  He indicated that a departmental 
analysis was being conducted to ensure 

Page 7 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

8



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

operational efficiencies and that he intended to 
include union representatives in this process.  Mr. 
Johnson said he would evaluate the entire table of 
organization; reallocate human resources within 
the Department; and outsource functions that 
would result in greater efficiencies.  

Mr. Johnson pointed out that about 140 out of 
approximately 1,000 pump stations were out of 
compliance and that a program was underway to 
complete this work within the next three to five 
years.  He said that he was diligently working to 
improve the Department’s customer efficiency 
responsiveness.  Mr. Johnson indicated that he 
wanted to increase the repair and replacement 
account from $70 million to $80 million in order 
to realize actual physical improvements in the 
community.

Commissioner Heyman inquired whether the 
proposed rate increase was sufficient to close the 
Department’s budget gap.

Mr. Johnson responded that the average $2.72 
monthly residential rate increase along with the 
wholesale customer rate increase was sufficient to 
close the gap.

Ms. Jennifer Moon, Director, Office of 
Management and Budget clarified that the rate 
increase was sufficient to pay down the debt 
service, but not the increased operating costs.  

Commissioner Heyman inquired whether the $40 
million increase in FY 2014-15 operating costs 
would result in a budget deficit.

Mr. Johnson explained that the Department would 
balance its budget.  He said his goal was to 
increase efficiencies and reduce operating costs.  

Commissioner Moss pointed out that Mr. Johnson 
was responsible for the recently completed Port of 
Miami Tunnel project, noting that project had the 
most diverse workforce he had seen in any County 
project.  He said he expected Mr. Johnson to bring 
the same level of leadership to the Department’s 
capital improvement projects as he did at the Port 
and establish a diverse workforce in these projects 
as well. 

Mr. Johnson commented that success was not just 
meeting budget but being under budget and 
ensuring utilization of supplies and materials from 
small local businesses and a local workforce.   He 

Page 8 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

9



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

pointed out that the Department was fully 
committed to this goal.

Commissioner Zapata noted a $1 million budget 
increase for information technology and general 
County support and questioned the reason for this 
increase. 

Mr. Johnson noted the need for the Department to 
automate its computer systems and software.

Commissioner Zapata commented that technology 
should result in additional operational 
efficiencies.  He noted significant investments in 
technology over the past three years and 
questioned the impact of this investment terms of 
cost savings measures.

Mr. Johnson responded that his experience 
integrating technology at the Port of Miami 
provided a more customer friendly experience and 
allowed the Port to reduce staff through 
attrition.    

Commissioner Zapata asked Mr. Johnson and 
Deputy Mayor Edward Marquez to quantify the 
financial and time efficiencies associated with 
information technology improvements within the 
Department.

Mr. Johnson noted that the department needed to 
undergo an attitude change and that staff needed 
to realize they were paid to perform a particular 
service.  He said an investment was needed to 
reduce the wait time and backlog in new customer 
service through automation and training.   

Ms. Moon pointed out that the increase in general 
County support was attributed to the 
administrative reimbursement, noting it was 
higher in direct relation to the increase in the 
Department’s budget request. 

Chairman Bovo asked Mr. Johnson to comment on 
the Hialeah Reverse Osmosis Plant as well as to 
provide an example of outsourcing cost saving 
measures.

Mr. Johnson said that Mayor Carlos Gimenez was 
expected to release a report on the Hialeah 
Osmosis Plant to County Commissioners later 
today (6/25).  He explained that the project was a 
joint participation agreement with the City of 
Hialeah; that the County funded 50 percent of the 
development of the facility; that the County would 

Page 9 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

10



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

fund 50 percent of the ongoing operation; that 
that the facility was almost compete; and that the 
County would receive 50 percent (7.5 million 
gallons) of water produced by the plant. 

Chairman Bovo noted the importance of the plant 
to the entire northwest portion of the County.  

Mr. Johnson explained that a letter was sent out 
16,000 WASD residential customers informing 
them the plant would produce high quality water 
and meet all standards even though it had a slight 
taste difference.  

In response to Chairman Bovo’s question about 
outsourcing, Mr. Johnson noted he was in the 
process of meeting with WASD’s workforce and 
union representatives. He said he was currently 
evaluating all Departmental functions and did not 
believe appropriate to address specific details at 
this time.

AVIATION 
Mr. Emilio Gonzalez, Director, Miami-Dade 
Aviation Department (MDAD) indicated that the 
FY 2014-15 proposed budget was based upon first 
quarter data and would be updated to reflect 
actual operating results.  He pointed out that the 
final budget customarily reflected higher revenues 
and lower landing fees than the proposed budget.   
Mr. Gonzalez estimated the landing fee would be 
$2 per passenger; however, expected it be closer 
to $1.75.  He anticipated 20.7 million emplaned 
passengers; 11 percent concession growth; and 4 
percent general aviation growth.  Mr. Gonzalez 
said that repayment of the double barrel debt was 
one year ahead of schedule and successful bond 
refunding’s resulted in lower interest rates on 
general aviation indebtedness.  He noted that 
passenger traffic was anticipated to grow by at 
least one percent; international traffic by at least 
1.7 percent; and the number of emplaned 
passengers by 29 percent.   

Mr. Gonzalez said that Miami International 
Airport (MIA) was the leading gateway to South 
America, Central America and the Caribbean.  He 
noted that MIA was now the tenth largest airport 
in the United States; the second largest 
international passenger airport in the United 
States; and the largest cargo airport in the United 
States.  Mr. Gonzalez indicated that MIA offered 
non-stop service to 141 locations of which 91 were 
international, making MIA a robust international 

Page 10 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

11



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

gateway.  He said that MIA was a business that 
must be taken seriously; that the budget was 
planned conservatively; that a competitive 
environment existed; that MIA must provide the 
best possible service for airlines using the facility; 
and passengers deserved to receive a memorable 
experience so that they would return and invest in 
this community.  

Commissioner Heyman noted a projected $20 
million expenditure and revenue increase and 
inquired the impact of this increase on passenger 
landing fees.

Ms. Anne Lee, Chief Financial Officer, Miami-
Dade Aviation Department explained the impact 
of revenue and expenditure growth on the budget, 
noting that she anticipated FY 2014-15 landing 
fees to be the same as they were for FY 2013-14.

Commissioner Heyman questioned whether the 
one-half percent increase in the reserve account 
was sufficient based upon industry standards and 
bond rating requirements. 

Ms. Lee responded that the reserves were 
appropriate under legal agreements with MIA’s 
airlines and bondholders. 

Commissioner Heyman indicated that the 
Department was requesting a $31 million dollar 
overtime salary and fringe benefit budget and 
asked Mr. Gonzalez and Deputy Mayor Edward 
Marquez for a report on overtime costs, fringe 
benefits and contractual services and whether 
these expenses could be further reduced through 
public private partnerships with local businesses. 

Board of County Commissioners Chairwoman 
Sosa inquired whether the 35.2 percent fringe 
benefit increase included the restoration of union 
member benefits, to which Mr. Gonzalez 
confirmed that it did.  

Commissioner Zapata noted a downward trend in 
commercial operation revenue, noting the fuel 
farm and duty free shops as examples and 
questioned why the projected FY 2014-15 revenue 
would be the same as it was two years ago. 

Ms. Jennifer Moon, Director, Office of 
Management and Budget responded that the FY 
2013-14 MIA budget was based upon using 95 
percent of the FY 2012-13 final budget results and 
was not adjusted.

Page 11 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

12



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Commissioner Zapata pointed out that commercial 
operations revenue should increase consistent 
with MIA growth; however, the income reflected in 
the budget did not.  He inquired whether the 
budget information provided was accurate or not.

Ms. Lee responded that commercial operation 
revenue was anticipated to increase.   She 
clarified that the budget reflected operating results 
from only the first quarter of FY 2013-14.  

Commissioner Zapata asked Mr. Gonzalez and 
Deputy Mayor Marquez for an update on 
projected FY 2014-15 commercial operations 
revenue.

Commissioner Moss questioned whether other 
departments did not provide updated budget 
results or if this was unique to the Aviation 
Department.

Ms. Moon responded that the Aviation 
Departments proposed budget was based upon 
anticipated figures at the time the budget was 
prepared; that budget adjustments were made in 
July/August in cooperation with the Miami Airport 
Affairs Committee (MAAC) and that budget 
changes were submitted during the annual budget 
hearings as a result of these adjustments.  She said 
the proposed budget was considered preliminary 
and was unique to the Aviation Department.

COMMUNITY INFORMATION AND OUTREACH
Mr. Henry Sori, Department Director, Community 
Information and Outreach (CIAO) noted the 
Department linked County government with 2.5 
million residents, visitors and County employees 
through a wide variety of communications 
channels.  He pointed out that CIAO’s goal was to 
provide information to the public about County 
programs, initiatives and services.  Mr. Sola said 
the Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 budget requests was 
for $16.8 million with $8.9 million from the 
General Fund and $7.9 from non-General Fund 
sources.  He noted a proposed decrease of 30 
employees with significant service reductions to 
the 3-1-1 Call Center and elimination of the 3-1-1 
Service Centers. 

Commissioner Moss questioned the impact of 
reductions to the 3-1-1 Center’s in responding to 
community requests. 

Page 12 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

13



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Mr. Sori responded that Saturday and Sunday 
service would be eliminated and fifteen service 
hours would be reduced between Monday and 
Friday in the FY 2014-15 budgets.  He said the 
service would operate Monday thru Friday from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  Mr. Sori estimated that 
approximately 400,000 fewer calls would be 
received as a result of the reduction in operating 
hours.  

Commissioner Heyman indicated that the creation 
and expansion of the 3-1-1 Answer Center was the 
most responsive action of this Administration.  She 
noted concern about the proposed service 
reductions and the importance of having someone 
available to speak to when troubled or with 
nowhere else to go. Commissioner Heyman asked 
Mr. Sori and Deputy Mayor Edward Marquez for 
a report identifying the type of inquiries being 
addressed by the 3-1-1 Answer Center, including 
who was calling and the purpose of the call.   

Commissioner Heyman said that the County 
Commission previously supported 3-1-1 Services 
Centers in an effort to provide access to County 
services in existing government buildings.  She 
noted the need to consider the size of the 
community and to offer County services in 
centrally located facilities that were not central to 
most people.  Commissioner Heyman said she was 
opposed to shutting down satellite locations with 
one employee and suggested reducing hours as an 
alternative.

Mr. Sori responded that this was a difficult 
decision to shut down the 3-1-1 Service Centers; 
that the Centers assisted approximately 45,000 
walk-in customers annually; and that Call 
Specialists in the Centers also responded to 3-1-1 
Answer Center inquiries at the same time.  He said 
that he would look into Commissioner Heyman’s 
concern. 

Ms. Jennifer Moon, Director, Office of 
Management and Budget pointed out that the 
Service Centers were being eliminated due to the 
reduction of personnel, and not because of rental 
or operational costs.  

Mr. Sori noted the personnel costs to maintain the 
Service Centers was approximately $224,000.

Commissioner Heyman committed that she would 
locate budget savings elsewhere in the budget to 
buy back these services.  

Page 13 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

14



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Board of County Commission Chairwoman Sosa 
questioned the percentage reduction that the 30 
eliminated positions represented to the total 
departmental budget. 

Mr. Sori responded that the total savings would be 
$1.8 million which represented 13 percent of the 
department’s budget. 

Chairwoman Sosa pointed out that the 
Department was requesting 42.68 percent in 
additional funding as follows: 2.88 percent salary 
increase, 28.26 percent overtime salary increase, 
and 11.54 percent contractual services increase.   

Ms. Moon clarified that Chairwoman Sosa was 
using original submission document data and did 
not take into consideration the proposed 
reductions.  She said CIAO’s budget would be 
reduced and there would not be increased 
overtime or temporary services.  

Chairwoman Sosa noted concern that the 
information being presented in the final budget 
was subject to last minute changes and that the 
County Commission did not receive sufficient 
details about those changes.  She said the cost of 
those reductions versus the costs of keeping the 
same level of services was needed. 

Commissioner Zapata noted that information 
technology consolidation was envisioned to save 
money; however, the costs associated with 
Information Technology Department maintenance 
increased.  

Mr. Sori responded that there was a change in the 
3-1-1 Answer Center operating system from a 
private vendor to an in-house system with a $1.2 
million shift in maintenance costs.

Commissioner Zapata inquired the reason for a 
$900,000 sponsorship and marketing budget 
request when only $41,000 was spent last year.  

Mr. Sori noted that a printing and production cost 
for the 305 Fit magazines was included in the 
budget; however, revenue was received from 
participating companies and sponsorships to 
cover this expense.

Commissioner Zapata noted fluctuations in the 
charges for County services and questioned the 
method used to determine this cost.

Page 14 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

15



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Ms. Moon responded that she discovered two 
charges budgeted in one line item and the actual 
expenditures were on another line and sub-objects 
moved between two of those line items.  She said 
the expenditures would line up and be fixed in the 
final FY 2014-15 budget.

Commissioner Zapata commented that the budget 
needed to be standardized so that information 
would be consistent every year and related items 
grouped together.

Ms. Moon said that the Budget Analysis Tool 
(BAT) system was designed to address these 
problems related to individual sub-object codes.

Chairman Bovo inquired whether CIAO was 
establishing internship opportunities with students 
from local colleges and universities.

Mr. Sori responded that the Department utilized 
internships through the Human Resources 
Department’s Executive Internship Program and 
had also established opportunities with local 
educational institutions.

Chairman Bovo questioned the Senior Executive 
Secretary position that was connected with the 
County Mayor’s office. 

Mr. Sori responded that the person holding that 
position previously worked for the County’s Chief 
Information Officer and the position’s title was 
subsequently changed.       

Chairman Bovo questioned the web designer and 
web developer positions to which Mr. Sori 
responded that these individuals worked with all 
County departments to design, develop, and 
manage the County’s website and other 
publications.  

Chairman Bovo and Mr. Sori discussed the 
Employee Recognition Coordinator and the 
responsibilities associated with that position.

Chairman Bovo inquired whether CIAO had 
explored outsourcing opportunities.

Mr. Sori responded that outsourcing the 3-1-1 
Answer Center was previously considered.  He 
said other companies offering global call center 
services previously reviewed the County’s 
operation and its requirements, noting that they 

Page 15 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

16



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

could perhaps do the job cheaper, but were 
unwilling to do so based upon the complexity of 
the job.  

Commissioner Zapata questioned what was being 
done to educate the community as to how to access 
the most frequently used County services online.  
He questioned whether residents were advised that 
they could access online services when they placed 
a call to the 3-1-1 Answer Center.

Mr. Sori said that the 3-1-1 Answer Center and 
MiamiDade.gov were promoted in every 
publication.  He noted that a message to visit the 
County website was provided when on-hold with 
the 3-1-1 Answer Center, but it was not related to 
specific services.

Commissioner Zapata pointed out that residents 
needed to be constantly informed and educated as 
to methods to access County services more 
efficiently and the use of technology. 

Mr. Sori pointed out that people still liked to talk 
to an individual and that an attempt to change this 
way of doing business was being implemented.  

Commissioner Zapata said that additional 
efficiencies would impact the budget.  He noted 
that the community needed to become more 
comfortable using the technology and resources 
which the County was investing in.  

Chairman Bovo opened the public hearing.

The following individuals appeared and addressed 
the Finance Committee in support of Community 
Based Organization (CBO) funding and the 
services they provide to County residents:

 -Ms. Immacula Durosier, Ms. Antoinett Penna, 
Ms. Maria Rodriguez, Mr. Ernie Martinez, and 
Mr. Ernest Meteze representing the Center for 
Independent Living of South Florida, 660 
Biscayne Boulevard, Miami.

 -Ms. Patricia Robbins, President and Chief 
Executive Officer, Farm Share, Inc., 14125 SW 
320 Street, Homestead

 -Ms. Melissa Saldana, 1601 SW 95 Avenue, 
Suite 300, Miami, representing Lutheran Services 
Florida

 -Ms. James Gordon, Intern, Catalyst Miami, 

Page 16 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

17



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

1901 Biscayne Boulevard, Miami, spoke on behalf 
of Kamalah Fletcher

 -Ms. Susan Rubio Rivera, Director, Men and 
Women United in Justice, Education and Reform 
(MUJIR), 14835 SW 297 Terrace, Leisure City

 -Ms. Andrea Schonenberg, 100 SE 2 Street, 
Suite 2200, Miami, spoke on behalf of Best 
Buddies, International and introduced Mr. 
Kristian Chima, a Best Buddy Ambassador from 
Coral Reef Senior High School

 -Ms. Renita Holmes, Executive Director, 
Women’s Association and Alliance Against 
Injustice and Violence, 350 NW 4 Avenue, Miami

 -Mr. William Delgado, 2418 NW 87 Place, 
Doral, representing the Florida Venture 
Foundation

 -Ms. Maria Tejera, Chief Executive Officer, Girl 
Scout Council of Tropical Florida, 11347 SW 160 
Street, Miami

 -Mr. Rick Jones, Executive Director and Chief 
Executive Officer, Economic Development Council 
of South Miami Dade. 18001 Old Cutler Road, 
Palmetto Bay

 -Ms. Nilsa Velazquez, Executive Director, 
KIDCO Child Care, Inc., 3630 NE 1 Court, Miami

 -Ms. Dorit Matthews, representing the Family 
Resource Center of South Florida, Parenting 
Education Program, 155 S. Miami Avenue, Suite 
400 Miami 

 -Ms. Tonnette Collier, Founder and Executive 
Director, Sweet Vine, 144 NW 11 Street, 
Homestead 

 -Ms. Debbie Kleinberg, representing the North 
Miami Foundation for Senior Citizen Services, 
620 NE 127 Street, North Miami

 -Ms. Rosa Carranza, representing the Little 
Havana Activities & Nutrition Centers, 700 SW 8 
Street, Miami

 -Ms. Doralba Munoz, Executive Director, Union 
Positiva, Inc., 215 SW 17 Avenue, Suite 310, 
Miami

 -Ms. Barbara Nickerson, representing the 

Page 17 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

18



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Richmond Heights Community Association, 11225 
SW 152 Street, Miami

 -Mr. Vaughn Marshall, Director, Richmond 
Heights Resource Center, 13900 Harrison Street, 
Miami

 -Rev. Kirk Zaremba representing the Sunrise 
Community, Inc., 9040 SW Sunset Drive, Miami

 -Mr. Fred Funeus, Administrator, Center for 
Haitian Studies, 8260 NE 2 Avenue, Miami

 -Ms. Rosa Maria Plasencia, 2153 Coral Way, 
Suite 405, Miami, representing Amigos for Kids

 -Mr. Anthony Okonman, Executive Director, 
Foundation for Democracy – Africa Trade 
Development Center, 2315 NW 107 Avenue, Doral

 -Mr. Camille Merilus, Founder and Executive 
Director, American International Relief, 14815 
NW 11 Avenue, Miami

 -Mr. Leroy Jones, Executive Director, Neighbors 
and Neighbors Association, 180 NW 62 Street, 
Miami

 -Mr. Arturo Lopez, Executive Director, 
Coalition of Florida Farmworker Organizations, 
778 West Palm Drive, Florida City

 -Ms. Ana Someillan, 11025 SW 84 Street, #11, 
Miami representing the Adult Mankind 
Organization, Inc.

 -Ms. Jessica Reyes Interim Executive Director, 
Colombian American Service Association, 10300 
Sunset Drive, Suite E-387, Miami

 -Pastor Ronac Cambridge, representing Glory 
Temple Ministries, 7950 NW 22 Avenue, Miami

 -Mr. J.L. Demps, Jr., President, Greater Goulds 
Optimist Club, 11025 SW 223 Street, Goulds

 -Mr. Ken Forbes, Chair, Leisure City/Naranja 
Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area, 25121 
SW 120 Place, Naranja 

 -Ms. Jannie Russell,  Founder and Executive 
Director, Teen Up-Ward Bound, Inc. 1210 Peri 
Street, Opa-Locka

 -Mr. David Borrero, Grants Administration, City 

Page 18 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

19



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

of Sweetwater, 500 SW 109 Avenue, Sweetwater

 -Ms. Sue Loyzelle, Government Relations and 
Grants Director, YMCA of Greater Miami, 730 
NW 107 Avenue, Suite 200, Miami

 -Ms. Terry Ann Moses, Clubhouse Program 
Director, Fellowship House, 5711 South Dixie 
Highway, Miami

 -Ms. Helena Del Monte, Chief Executive Officer, 
Association for the Development of the 
Exceptional, Inc., with centers located in Midtown, 
Hialeah and Goulds
 -
 -Mr. Manuel Del Valle, representing Sisters and 

Brothers Forever, Inc., 1800 SW 1 Street, Suite 
205, Miami

 -Ms. Eileen Maloney-Simon, Chief Executive 
Officer, YWCA of Greater Miami-Dade, 351 NW 5 
Street Miami

 -Mr. Ludnel St-Preux, Deputy Director, Haitian 
Neighborhood Center – Sant La, 5000 Biscayne 
Boulevard, Suite 110, Miami

 -Mr. Alex Rodriguez-Roig, President, Boys and 
Girls Clubs of Miami-Dade, 2805 SW 32 Avenue, 
Miami

 -Ms. Patricial Miro, Program Director, 
Allapattah Community Action, Inc., 2257 NW 
North River Drive, Miami

 -Ms. Angela Vazquez, Assistant Director, 
Southwest Social Services, 7757 SW 118 Place, 
Miami

 -Ms. Laverne Holliday, Assistant Director, 
Curley’s House of Style, Inc., 6025 NW 6 Court, 
Miami

 -Ms. LaVern Scott, Executive Director. Curley’s 
House of Style, Inc., 6025 NW 6 Court, Miami 

 -Ms. Kametra Driver, Executive Director, We 
Care of South Dade, 1515 Redland Road, Florida 
City

Chairman Bovo closed the public hearing after 
seeing no one further wishing to speak.

NOTE: See Agenda Item 1E1 CONT, Legislative 

Page 19 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

20



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

File No. 141721 for the continuation of this 
Special Presentation Item.

Page 20 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

21



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Presented
141721

1E1 CONT.

NOTE:  This Special Presentation Item is a 
continuation of Item 1E1, Legislative File No. 
141482.

MIAMI-DADE POLICE DEPARTMENT
Mr. Angus Butler, Assistant Director, Investigative 
Services, Miami-Dade Police Department 
(MDPD) noted the Department had 2,864 sworn 
officers and 1,200 civilian employees.  He said 
MDPD provided law enforcement services to 7 
decentralized police districts in the 
unincorporated municipal services area (UMSA), 
the rail system, the Stephen P. Clark Government 
Center, the Rickenbacker Causeway and Jackson 
Memorial Hospital.  Mr. Butler indicated that 
MDPD provided countywide shared services in the 
warrants bureau, court services bureau, forensic 
services bureau, homeland security and special 
patrol functions.  He noted contracts with Miami 
Lakes, Palmetto Bay and Cutler Bay as well as 
with the Port of Miami and Miami International 
Airport.

Mr. Gustavo Knoepffler, Chief Financial Officer, 
MDPD indicated a $596,220,000 budget request 
for Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 which represented a 
five percent increase from the previous year.  He 
noted 255 sworn officers and 39 civilian 
employees were proposed to be laid-off under this 
proposal.  

Mr. Butler indicated that the MDPD’s priority was 
to maintain staffing levels in the districts and 
uniform functions by utilizing sworn officers in 
administrative, support and investigative 
positions.   

Commissioner Heyman inquired whether any 
uniformed officers would be laid off under this 
proposal.

Mr. Knoepffler responded that uniformed 
personnel in police districts were not included in 
the 225 proposed layoffs. 

Commissioner Heyman noted concern that the 
entire criminal justice system would be impacted 

CONTINUATION OF SPECIAL PRESENTATION - ITEM 
NO. 1E1

Special Presentation

Report:

Page 21 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

22



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

by the reduction of police investigative and 
support services.   

In response to Commissioner Heyman’s question 
about the results of modifications to MDPD’s 
information technology resources, Mr. Angel 
Petisco, Director, Information Technology 
Department noted that consolidation efforts over 
the past sixty days had identified $1.5 million 
savings to the General Fund in the current year 
and a similar amount next year.  

Commissioner Heyman noted examples of 
significant information technology efficiencies and 
cost savings measures in the public safety system 
as follows: 1) the E-Notify program reduced 21 
out of 22 positions in the State Attorney’s Office 
and saved the County over $9 million annually; 2) 
the A-Form program was designed to cut down on 
the time required to book arrested individuals and 
to reduce manpower costs with an $11 million 
annual savings; 3) the E-Filing program saved $4 
million allowing the public defender to interview 
inmates over the internet rather than being 
escorted to another location; and 4) additional 
savings realized through the tele-medicine 
program at Jackson Memorial Hospital.

Commissioner Heyman asked Mr. Petisco, and 
Deputy Mayor Edward Marquez to expedite the 
implementation of the E-Warrant and the A-Form 
programs.  She pointed out that the success of 
these programs would result in manpower 
reductions as evidenced by other information 
technology efforts, noting that these savings could 
be used to address the upcoming budget deficit. 

Board of County Commissioners Chairwoman 
Sosa inquired what the deficit would be without 
eliminating the 255 sworn officer positions.

Mr. Knoepffler responded that the MDPD was 
requested to cut $43 million from its budget and 
that these positions represented $27.3 million. 

Chairwoman Sosa indicated that public safety 
remained a priority of this community.  She noted 
departments were asked to identify savings within 
their departments without affecting direct services 
to the community.  Chairwoman Sosa said that the 
first call residents made when needing help was to 
the police and fire rescue departments and that 
she could not tell the community that they were 
safe with these reductions.  She expressed her 
concern about the reduction in domestic violence 

Page 22 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

23



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

and gang investigations.

Mr. Butler commented that domestic violence and 
gang investigations would continue and would be 
conducted by district detectives.   

Chairwoman Sosa maintained that the delivery of 
services would be impacted by fragmenting the 
Department.

Mr. Butler pointed out that there would be service 
impacts, primarily to detective case loads and that 
vulnerable victim investigations would not be 
impacted. 

Commissioner Moss questioned the process of how 
the original 450 proposed layoffs were reduced to 
255.

Ms. Jennifer Moon, Director, Office of 
Management and Budget responded that other 
savings were identified that could be transferred 
to the MDPD. 

Commissioner Moss inquired whether the 255 
proposed layoffs were from desk positions or 
street patrols and whether planned attrition was 
included.

Mr. Butler responded that the proposed layoffs 
were sworn officers and that attrition was already 
included in these figures.

Commissioner Moss questioned whether snap 
back costs were included and what were the costs 
associated with this return of benefits. 

Ms. Moon responded that all positions could be 
bought back without snap back costs and changes 
made to the health plan. 

Commissioner Heyman noted the red light safety 
measure was passed two years ago and asked 
Deputy Mayor Marquez to expedite the 
implementation of red light monitoring programs 
at the County’s most dangerous intersections. 

Chairman Bovo expressed concern over the 
reduction in the number of police officers, noting 
that police services would be impacted.   

Chairman Bovo opened the public hearing.

Mr. John Rivera, President, Dade County Police 
Benevolent Association pointed out that police 

Page 23 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

24



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

services were already suffering and would further 
deteriorate with additional reductions.   

Chairman Bovo closed the public hearing after 
seeing no one further wishing to speak. 

Chairman Bovo commented that residents 
expected all public officials to get the job done, 
noting the need to focus on providing services to 
the community.  

MIAMI-DADE FIRE RESCUE
Chief David Downey, Miami-Dade Fire Rescue 
(MDFR) Department pointed out that MDFR was 
the sixth largest fire department in the United 
States with 67 fire stations and 2,300 employees of 
which 2,000 were uniformed firefighters and 
paramedics.  He said MDFR served 29 
municipalities and the unincorporated areas of the 
County; a population of 1.9 million, making it the 
second largest service area in the Country.  Chief 
Downey noted MDFR also served the Port of 
Miami and the Aviation Department as well as 
provided air rescue, communications, motion 
rescue, and emergency management services.  He 
said that the Miami Lakes West Station 64 was 
scheduled to open by the end of the year; that the 
Coconut Palm Station 70 unit was already in 
service and the station would soon be open; and 
that negotiations were underway to secure 
property for a Pinecrest/Palmetto Bay station.   

Chief Downey noted a balanced Fiscal Year (FY) 
2014-15 budget with 55 additional firefighters.  
He said there would only be one firefighter class 
rather than the three that were proposed.  Chief 
Downey noted unmet service demands existed with 
underserved pockets within the community 
requiring service.  He pointed out although fire 
engines and one-half of fire rescue vehicles were 
replaced, the other half of the rescue vehicles, the 
aerials and the battalion vehicles were beyond 
their lifespan and also in need of replacement.  
Chief Downey said that many facilities were over 
forty years old and not designed for the current 
staffing and apparatus used.  He also said that the 
fleet replacement facility was also outdated.  

Chief Downey mentioned that an additional $5 
million would be needed to be replaced in FY 
2015-16 when the Staffing for Adequate Fire & 
Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant funding 
ended.    

Page 24 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

25



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Commissioner Heyman asked for clarification 
whether the Seaport and Aviation Departments 
paid the MDFR Department for their services.  
She also asked if MDFR had full billing for its 
national and international search and rescue 
operations.

Chief Downey responded that the MDFR 
Department was full reimbursed for services 
provided at the Seaport and Airport.  He said that 
thirteen of the newly hired firefighters would be 
located at and paid for by the Airport.  Chief 
Downey pointed out full billing and timely 
reimbursement for search and rescue services 
were in-place. 

Commissioner Heyman expressed her concern 
over the need for fire rescue boats and for an 
update on the deployment of a rescue boat. 

Chief Downey noted that there was no funding 
proposed in the FY 2014-15 budgets for the fire 
rescue boat or for any additional unit to cross staff 
the boat.  

Commissioner Heyman pointed out that there were 
fire stations and free dockage already located at 
the Port of Miami, at Pelican Harbor on the 79th 
Street Causeway and at Haulover Park.  She 
questioned the possibility of using the County’s 
boats designed for water calls, other than the two 
large fire boats, and the 200 firefighters already 
trained for water duty. 

Chief Downey responded that rigid hull inflatable 
boats were located at some of the coastal stations 
and needed to be deployed into the water.  He said 
there was dockage available at Haulover; 
however, noted that a temporary facility was 
located within a park at Pelican Harbor which 
was actually prohibited by the County Charter.  
Chief Downey noted that MDFR was looking to 
further develop the grid program and the ability to 
utilize the hard hull, larger fire boats.   

Commissioner Heyman said that staff was already 
trained to use two large fire boats that were 
currently in dry dock.  She noted she did not 
believe a specialized unit was needed and that 
currently trained staff could be used for both 
water and land duties.  Commissioner Heyman 
commented that donor communities could pull out 
of the fire district should they desire to do so, 
pursuant to a court decision.   

Page 25 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

26



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Commissioner Heyman inquired about the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) asking 
Miami-Dade County to repay $14 million in 
disaster recovery funds according information 
received from the Florida Associations of 
Counties.  

Ms. Blanca Padron, Deputy Finance Director, 
Finance Department responded that the County 
would not reimburse these funds until FEMA de-
obligated this debt and applied it against a $24 
million deficit being held from Hurricanes Wilma 
and Irene.   

Commissioner Heyman noted concern that this 
obligation should not be encumbered against the 
MDFR Department budget.  

Ms. Padron clarified that it was a special revenue 
fund and would not impact the Department’s 
budget.

Chairman Bovo noted concern that reductions to 
the Fire Rescue District millage rates could 
impact the Department’s ability to generate 
reserve funds to be used when the SAFER Grant 
funding was no longer available.   

Ms. Jennifer Moon, Director, Office of 
Management and Budget responded that 
Administration concurred with Chairman’ Bovo’s 
concern.  She noted that a five year forecast was 
being developed to ensure that a deficit would not 
be created once the grant funding ended.

Chairman Bovo opened the public hearing.

The following individuals appeared and addressed 
the Finance Committee:

Mr. Al Cruz, International Association of 
Firefighters (IAFF) – Local 1403, Miami-Dade 
Fire Rescue Department (MDFR) pointed out that 
the MDFR gave $3 million to the Library District 
in 2011, noting concern that  fire rescue services 
were  negatively impacted since then.  He said that 
due to service cuts there was no water fire 
suppression coverage on Key Biscayne recently 
resulting in over $4 million in yacht fire damage.  
Mr. Cruz noted over 375,000 annual calls were 
handled by MDFR and he expressed concern over 
administrations statement that the proposed 
budget would not impact services.  He stressed the 
need to raise the millage rate in order to build up 
the reserve account and to provide core services 

Page 26 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

27



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

to the community.  

Mr. Cruz suggested pipelining Miami-Dade 
County Police Department employees slated for 
layoff to the MDFR as an alternative to 
termination.  He said he was opposed to 
brownouts because of the uncertainty of when and 
where services were needed, noting the detriment 
to the community and firefighters.  Mr. Cruz said 
the MDFR water resources needed to be 
reinstated for the betterment of the community.  

Mr. Kevin Martin, Chief Fire Officer, MDFR, 
14253 SW 129 Place, Miami, addressed concern 
that minimum staffing was created for firefighter 
safety and the ability to respond to and mitigate 
any emergency.  He said trucks were staffed with 
three and four firefighter based upon the 1,900 
square miles service area.  Mr. Martin noted 
vehicle staffing issues due to 2011 and 2014 union 
concessions and contract interpretation, resulting 
in more units responding to emergencies than 
necessary to meet minimum staffing requirements.  
He expressed concern over the ‘can do with less 
attitude’ for firefighters and the need to determine 
what was required to fully staff the vehicles when 
preparing the budget.  

Mr. Cruz suggested that lost services be reinstated 
before initiating new services.  

Mr. Terry Murphy, 8346 Dundee Terrace, Miami 
Lakes, noted that the revised budget was based on 
the presumption of a limit and a fixed amount of 
the aggregate sum millage that would not be 
touched and that the millage rates were off limits 
in the budget discussion.  He said he served on the 
Charter Review Task Force and did not recall any 
discussion about a strong property appraiser form 
of government which appeared to be the method 
the County was using by not allowing decisions on 
the millage rates in the budget process.  Mr. 
Murphy indicated that fixing millage rates 
permanently ignored service demands, changes in 
population and community needs.  He said that it 
was not appropriate to allow the Property 
Appraiser to determine the community service 
levels. 

Mr. Murphy indicated that the recent ordinance 
change sponsored by Commissioner Barreiro 
requiring separate votes on each taxing 
jurisdictions was appropriate, noting that the 
needs and funding for one district should not 
impact that of another district.  

Page 27 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

28



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Chairman Bovo closed the public hearing after 
seeing no one further wishing to speak. 

Chairman Bovo asked Ms. Moon, Chief Downey, 
and Deputy Mayor Edward Marquez to follow-up 
on a previously requested report outlining the 
operations and shifts. 

Chief Cruz said he would provide Chairman Bovo 
with that information, noting that the same staffing 
levels were required 24 hours per day and that 
staffing was based upon hazards and population, 
and not the time of day.  He indicated that shift 
changes resulted in increased costs because of 
hold over overtime and firefighters moving 
between stations in order to maintain service.  Mr. 
Cruz pointed out that the 24/48 scheduling was the 
most efficient and economic option.   

MIAMI-DADE CORRECTIONS AND 
REHABILITATION DEPARTMENT 
Mr. Daniel Junior, Assistant Director Custody 
Services, Miami-Dade Corrections and 
Rehabilitation Department (MDCR) noted that 
MDCR was the eighth largest jail correctional 
facility in the United States.  He said MDCR 
operated four facilities with 2,846 employees of 
which 2,105 were sworn officers.  Mr. Junior 
noted MDCR had a rating capacity of 5,642 
inmates and currently had an average population 
of 4,800 inmates.  He pointed out that the 
centralized intake center at the Turner Guilford 
Knight Correctional Center provided a more 
humane system of processing the 240 to 300 daily 
arrests.

Mr. Junior noted a dramatic reduction in the wait 
time for law enforcement officers.  He indicated 
that the A-Form Project was underway; that a Jail 
Management System was being pursued; and that 
the Q-Management System was recognized by the 
Public Technology Institute with a Technology 
Solution Award.   Mr. Junior noted that the Boot 
Camp was in its 19th year and had 151 cadets 
under supervision with a 90 percent success rate.

Mr. Junior pointed out that the Fiscal Year (FY) 
2014-15 budget submission was for $317 million; 
however, noted that efficiencies were subsequently 
identified reducing the budget request to $292 
million.  He said that all training classes would be 
eliminated from June through September during 
the budget year and that training staff would be 

Page 28 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

29



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

assigned to other positions to help mitigate 
overtime costs.  Mr. Junior noted positions within 
operations were identified that could be performed 
by civilian employees rather than by sworn 
officers and that those officers would be assigned 
to direct posts within the jails.  He indicated that 
reductions would have a minimal impact to 
rehabilitation, vocational and adult education 
programs; the U.S. Department of Justice federal 
mandates; or to safety and security efforts.  

Commissioner Heyman noted the successful 
rehabilitation rates associated with the Boot Camp 
program and expressed concern that the program 
was being eliminated. 

An unidentified staff member noted the Boot Camp 
budget represented a $5 million ? reimbursement 
from the General Fund.

Commissioner Heyman said she would work to 
identify funding within the budget to maintain the 
Boot Camp program.   

Commissioner Heyman suggested that MDCR 
transported arrested individuals rather than 
taking police officers off the street for this 
purpose.  

Commissioner Heyman asked Mr. Junior and 
Deputy Mayor Edward Marquez to provide her 
with a report on incarcerated inmates so that the 
Dade-Miami Criminal Justice Council could make 
recommendations on the effective use of 
monitoring bracelets, prior to the end of this 
month. 

Commissioner Heyman asked Ms. Jennifer Moon, 
Director, Office of Management and Budget and 
Deputy Mayor Marquez to expedite opening the 
mental health facility at NW 22nd Street and 7th 
Avenue.

ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT 
Ms. Christina White, Deputy Supervision of 
Elections, Elections Department (Elections) noted 
the Department served 1.3 million registered 
voters in Miami-Dade County, the largest number 
of voters in the State of Florida.  She said the 
mission was to provide accurate elections and 
easy access to voting.  Ms. White indicated that 
approximately thirty elections were held annually; 
that over 812 precincts were managed; and that 
Elections provided other services throughout the 

Page 29 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

30



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

year such as candidate services, poll worker 
recruitment, voter registration and list 
maintenance, and equipment maintenance.  She 
indicated that Elections had 94 permanent 
employees and up to 900 seasonal employees for 
Countywide elections.  Ms. White pointed out that 
budget growth was attributed to re-precincting, 
early voting, and electronic poll book 
implementation.  

Commissioner Heyman inquired whether County 
employees were asked to serve as poll workers.

Ms. White responded that County employees were 
used as election support specialists.

Commissioner Heyman questioned the rationale 
for the significant increase in overtime costs of 
over $1 million.

Ms. White pointed out that more than $2 million 
including overtime cost reductions were already 
made to the budget; however, the Committee was 
reviewing an earlier version at this time.  She 
noted that the upcoming general election required 
a higher level of services which contributed to the 
need for additional overtime costs.

In response to Commissioner Heyman’s inquiry 
whether municipal governments paid the County 
for their elections services, she noted that they did.

Chairman Bovo indicated there appeared to be 
many Deputy Supervisor of Election positions and 
questioned whether this was appropriate.

Mr. White responded that there were five divisions 
within the Elections Department and that each 
department had a division director with the 
Deputy Supervisor of Elections title.  She said the 
span of control increased during election periods 
with an increase in the number of seasonal 
employees.

Chairman Bovo questioned the 32 percent budget 
increase representing $9 million from last year’s 
budget to the current request.

Ms. White reiterated that the most recent budget 
revision represented a reduction of $2 million.  
She explained that printing costs were higher for a 
general election; that there were increased efforts 
underway to educate voters about re-precincting; 
that there were additional costs associated with 
operating early voter sites; and that there were 

Page 30 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

31



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

increased contractual obligations for additional 
voting equipment.  

Chairman Bovo inquired about the remedies being 
implemented to avoid long lines.

Ms. White responded that the long lines in 
November 2012 were due to the long ballot, 
confusing language, archaic check-in process, and 
condensed days and hours of early voting.  She 
said that the upcoming general election ballot 
should be only two pages; that there were only 2 
to 3 State constitutional amendments; that the 
number of sites, days, and hours for early voting 
would be expanded; and that the new check-in 
system would process voters more efficiently. 

Chairman Bovo questioned what was preventing 
voters from voting at any precinct.  

Ms. White pointed out that a change in State 
Statute would be needed to allow voters to vote at 
any precinct.   

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
Ms. Jennifer Moon, Director, Office of 
Management and Budget noted the Office of the 
Mayor’s budget included salary savings through 
position reductions and replacements; a service 
level agreement with the Information Technology 
Department that reduced costs; the continuation 
of employee concessions and the group health 
care contribution; and a twenty percent general 
fund subsidy due to Deputy Mayor’s serving as 
directors of different departments.  

Commissioner Heyman noted concern that all 
employees including those under the Mayor’s 
purview were treated the same and questioned the 
number of employees that would be impacted.

Ms. Moon confirmed that premium pay, flex pay, 
merit pay, and longevity pay would not be 
received by employees under the Mayor’s purview 
and that those employees would continue to pay 
toward group health insurance.  She informed 
Commissioner Heyman that there were more than 
2,000 employees under the Mayor’s purview.

Commissioner Heyman asked Ms. Moon and 
Deputy Mayor Edward Marquez to provide her 
with a salary and benefit analysis for employees 
under the Office of the Mayor and for all other 
employees under his purview.

Page 31 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

32



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Chairman Bovo asked Ms. Moon and Deputy 
Mayor Marquez for a comparison of 
administrative costs between the proposed FY 
2014-15 budgets and the time period prior to the 
implementation of the Strong Mayor form of 
government for both the County Executive Office 
and Countywide.

OFFICE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSION CHAIR AND RESPECTIVE 
OFFICES 
Mr. Charles Anderson, Commission Auditor, 
Office of the Commission Auditor, provided a 
PowerPoint budget overview presenting office 
highlights and responsibilities for the Office of the 
Chair, Support Staff, Media, Protocol and 
Employee Recognition, Office of Agenda 
Coordination, Office of Intergovernmental Affairs, 
Office of the Commission Auditor, and the Office 
of Community Advocacy.  

Mr. Anderson noted the following budget 
reductions would be made in addition to the  
$614,000 budget reduction presented in the initial 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 budget request: Office 
of the Chair ($32,000), Support Staff ($70,000), 
Media ($76,000), Protocol and Employee 
Recognition ($8,000), Office of Agenda 
Coordination ($19,000), Office of 
Intergovernmental Affairs ($128,000), Office of 
the Commission Auditor ($132,000), and the 
Office of Community Advocacy ($149,000). 

Commissioner Heyman asked Mr. Anderson and 
Deputy Mayor Edward Marquez to provide her 
with the percentage decrease in the Board of 
County Commissioners (BCC) budget between FYs 
2013-14 and 2014-15 and the amount of budget 
reduction needed to match the ten percent 
reduction requested of all other departments. 

In response to Commissioner Heyman’s inquiry 
whether any of the employees being discussed 
were included in collective bargaining 
agreements, she was informed by Ms. Jennifer 
Moon, Director, Office of Management and 
Budget that it applied only to the three Sergeant at 
Arms Officers.  Mr. Anderson confirmed that snap 
back costs and the elimination of group health 
care contributions were not part of the proposed 
budget and these items did not apply nor would 
they have any impact upon the budget. 

Page 32 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

33



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Commissioner Heyman noted she believed that 
each advisory board under the Office of 
Community Advocacy (OCA) was represented by a 
full-time paid director and proceeded to request 
an overview of the department’s staff and 
responsibilities.

Mr. Rene Diaz, Director of Community Advocacy, 
OCA, indicated that the Office had nine 
employees; that there were six boards each with a 
program officer or director; that there was a 
community relations liaison, an office assistant 
and the director.  He noted that OCA had a 
$987,000 budget.

Commissioner Heyman pointed out that it was the 
BCC’s intent that OCA hired one director to 
coordinate all advisory boards with the exception 
of the Community Relations Board (CRB). 

Mr. Diaz responded to Commissioner Heyman’s 
inquiry that the average salary for program 
directors was between $75,000 and $85,000.  He 
noted newly hired directors received salaries in 
the $60,000 to $65,000 range and other directors 
received $100,000 salaries.

Commissioner Heyman said she previously 
supported creating the OCA Director position 
under the assumption that one director would 
coordinate six boards inasmuch as boards only 
met or held one event per month.  She said that 
she could not support this proposal; that Mr. Diaz 
should be the director for all boards with the 
exception of the CRB; and that there should be a 
liaison assigned to the individual boards.

Board of County Commissioners Chairwoman 
Sosa mentioned that diligent efforts were made to 
identify savings in the Office of the Chair’s budget 
that would allow the County Commissioners 
District budgets to remain untouched in order to 
continue providing direct services to the 
community.  She mentioned that several positions 
were closed and that newly hired employees were 
hired at lower salary levels.  

Ms. Barbara Galvez, Operating Budget 
Coordinator, Office of Management and Budget 
explained that each division reporting to 
Chairwoman Sosa was analyzed, noting that 
employee snap backs costs and the elimination of 
vacant positions were removed, resulting in an 
approximate 8.5 percent reduction from the 
original submission.   

Page 33 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

34



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Chairwoman Sosa said that the staff salaries 
remained untouched while identifying the savings 
necessary to balance the budget without affecting 
services to the community.

Chairman Bovo questioned whether the 
community advocacy boards were created by 
ordinance or through an election and the 
timeframe when the original boards were 
established.

Mr. Diaz responded that the boards were created 
by ordinance and board members were appointed 
by members of the County Commission.  He 
indicated that the Community Relations Board 
was created in 1963, the Hispanic Affairs Board in 
1992 and the Black Affairs Board around the same 
time period.

Chairman Bovo said that the boards were 
originally created to advise the County 
Commission on issues pertinent to the community.  
He indicated that the makeup of the Commission 
had changed since most of the boards were 
created and there may not be a need for the 
Hispanic Affairs Board with seven Hispanic 
Commissioners; for the Black Affairs Board with 
three African American and one Haitian American 
Commissioner; or the Commission for Women 
with five women on the Commission.  Chairman 
Bovo said there was a significant problem if 
Commissioners were not aware of the needs of 
their communities.  He noted an argument could 
be made as to whether all the existing boards were 
needed and whether they needed to be staffed.  

Chairman Bovo inquired whether the budget 
included funding for external lobbyists hired by 
the Office of Intergovernmental Affairs (OIA).

Mr. Joe Rasco, Director, Office of 
Intergovernmental Affairs responded that the 
General Fund paid for external lobbyists. 

Chairman Bovo noted he believed the full costs of 
operating OIA needed to be combined. 

Ms. Jennifer Moon, Director, Office of 
Management and Budget responded that the fees 
paid for outside lobbyists were maintained in the 
General Fund so that the County Commission’s 
budget would not significantly increase at the time 
OIA was transferred under its purview.  

Page 34 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

35



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Commissioner Heyman asked Mr. Rasco and 
Deputy Mayor Edward Marquez to provide her 
with a detailed departmental budget breakdown.

COMMISSION ON ETHICS & PUBLIC TRUST 
Mr. Joseph Centorino, Executive Director, 
Commission on Ethics & Public Trust (CEPT), 
noted the Commission enforced the countywide 
ethics code, offered education and training 
services, and provided opinions and guidance to 
anyone affected by the code.  He said that CEPT 
applied to County government, municipalities, 
elected and administrative officials, government 
employees, advisory board members and 
lobbyists.  

Mr. Centorino noted the Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 
budget reflected a 4 percent increase to cover 
health insurance and pension costs.  He pointed 
out that two part-time positions were consolidated 
into one new full-time position, resulting in a net 
cost savings.  Mr. Centorino explained that CEPT 
was currently providing more investigations, 
opinions, outreach programs and training services 
with fewer resources and personnel than when he 
joined the Commission.  He pointed out that CEPT 
presented ethics conferences over the past two 
years; initiated an ethical governance game; and 
designed and implemented a nine step boot camp 
program for 245 City of Miami Beach Regulatory 
employees.  Mr. Cnetorine envisioned that CEPT 
would need to expand sometime in the future; 
however, noted he would attempt to do so through 
anticipated savings and resources within the 
existing budget.  

Commissioner Heyman commented that she 
appreciated Mr. Centorino’s keeping his promise 
to assume a greater workload without asking for 
additional funding.  She inquired about the size of 
the CEPT staff; the number of employees covered 
by collective bargaining agreements; and the 
reason for the proposed budget increase. 

Mr. Centorino responded that CEPT consisted of 
fourteen employees and that six employees were 
covered by collective bargaining unit agreements.  
He noted that a four percent increase was 
included in the proposed budget to cover the 
increased expenses associated with health 
insurance and pension costs.  Mr. Centorino 
pointed out that CEPT generated outside revenue 
from lobbyist trainings and fines collected.

Page 35 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

36



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Ms. Jennifer Moon, Director, Office of 
Management and Budget explained that the CEPT 
revenue was reflected in the budget as a 
reimbursement and the General Fund subsidy was 
reduced by approximately $85,000 due to this 
additional revenue.

Commissioner Heyman asked Ms. Moon and 
Deputy Mayor Edward Marquez to provide 
information on revenue generated by the CEPT to 
her colleagues.  
Ms. Moon pointed out that the Budget Book 
narrative would present this information.

Commissioner Heyman questioned what would 
happen to the budgeted revenue in the event that 
snap back provisions did not apply.

Ms. Moon responded that the budget assumed the 
return of snap back costs for all CEPT employees 
since they were not under the Mayor’s purview.  
She said that the revenue associated with union 
employees would be returned to the General Fund 
and that a discussion would be needed with Mr. 
Centorino for the revenue associated with non-
union employees.  Ms. Moon explained that six 
employees were unionized and the other eight 
were non-bargaining unit employees, noting that 
the determination of pay would be authorized by 
the Executive Director and the Ethics Commission.

Commissioner Heyman said there was now a third 
employee category under a Director’s purview 
which did not fall under the union or the executive 
authority of the Mayor or the Board of County 
Commissioners. 

Mr. Centorino responded that CEPT was 
considered a separate category and he did not 
want to create two classes of employees within the 
organization.  He noted that this was doable under 
the scope of the proposed budget. 

Commissioner Heyman questioned whether CEPT 
was able to provide this benefit while adhering to 
the Mayor’s request for a ten percent budget 
reduction.

Mr. Centorino indicated that CEPT was providing 
more services within its existing budget.  He said 
he had foregone hiring additional staff in order to 
remain fiscally responsible.

Commissioner Heyman said she was not 
concerned about the quality or integrity of CEPT’s 

Page 36 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

37



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

work or employees.  She noted that the Police 
Department was also doing more with less, yet 
they were receiving a reduction in the number of 
employees.  Commissioner Heyman said other 
departments were required to pay the five percent 
insurance contribution in addition to losing 
services. She indicated that she did not support the 
proposed budget and requested sacrifice from this 
department, rather than receiving restored 
benefits.  

OFFICE OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL
Ms. Mary Cagle, Inspector General, Office of the 
Inspector General (OIG) noted the proposed 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 budget was $5.888 
million; that 63 percent was proprietary revenue; 
and that 37 percent was from the General Fund.  
She said the Department had 38 positions with 2 
positions frozen, thus reducing the budget request 
to $5.698 million.  Ms. Cagle pointed out that the 
OIG had two investigative squads located 
downtown, one at the Miami International Airport, 
one at the Water and Sewer Department, and one 
occasionally at the Public Health Trust.  She said 
there was also an audit squad and contract 
oversight specialists located downtown providing 
valuable prevention services.  

Chairman Bovo questioned the extent that the OIG 
was involved in the investigations related to the 
recently arrested County employees.  

Ms. Patra Liu, Assistant Inspector General, Office 
of the Inspector General responded that she 
believed that there were two County employees 
arrested in the past six months and that the OIG 
had issued advisory memorandums to the County 
Commission on other cases involving the Miami 
International Airport hotel and other County 
vendors.  

Ms. Cagle pointed out that OIG investigations 
were related to complaints received and that the 
OIG partnered with appropriate agencies as 
necessary.  She noted that the police department 
could initiate an investigation that did not include 
the OIG.

Commissioner Heyman pointed out that Florida 
Statute allowed the recovery of investigative costs 
and inquired whether OIG billings were included 
in OIG’s proprietary income figures.

Ms. Cagle responded that OIG recouped the costs 

Page 37 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

38



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

of investigation whenever possible. 

Ms. Cagle pointed out that the proposed budget 
assumed the OIG was not taking premium, 
longevity and flex benefits and that they were 
evaluating options to relocate into a County 
facility in order to save $263,000 annual rental 
payments.

COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE
Mr. Robert Cuevas, County Attorney, County 
Attorney’s Office (CA), noted a $22.693 million 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 budget request, 
representing a $1.2 million (five percent) decrease 
in General Fund support.  He noted the CA had 
136 employees; 71 lawyers and 65 support staff, 
with operations at Miami International Airport 
and the Water and Sewer Department.  Mr. 
Cuevas said there were ten fewer lawyers and 
seven fewer support staff today than in FY 2008 – 
09.  He indicated that there was increased demand 
for services and staff worked longer hours and 
weekends to get the job done.  Mr. Cuevas pointed 
out that in addition to providing support at 
Commission meetings, the CA represented all 
County agencies and departments; served all their 
legal needs; functioned as in-house counsel; 
provided advise and performed transactional 
work.  He explained that the CA was currently 
litigating approximately 8,000 active lawsuits and 
administrative adversarial matters. 

Mr. Cuevas explained that the CA office was 
modeled after the best practices in the private 
sector where in-house lawyers were hired at a 
lower cost and immediately available to address 
management’s needs.  As an example, the 
Property Appraiser hired outside council at $350 
per hour, noting that the attorney representing the 
County, Mr. Oren Rosenthal, was paid $118 per 
hour, less than one-third the amount paid to the 
private attorney, said Mr. Cuevas.  He also noted 
that the County paid its attorney, Mr. Tim Abbott, 
$133 per hour to represent Miami International 
Airport in the American Airline bankruptcy 
proceedings whereas other similar creditors paid 
their private council between $680 to $1,220 per 
hour and American Airlines paid its lawyers $540 
to $1,075 per hour.  

Chairman Bovo concurred that the County 
received a considerable value for its money spent 
for its legal staff; however, he questioned the 
correlation between years of legal experience and 

Page 38 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

39



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

years employed by the County in the determination 
of salaries.

Mr. Cuevas responded that salaries were 
determined based upon an evaluation of their 
ability to handle particular responsibilities and 
legal matters. 

Chairman Bovo asked Mr. Cuevas and Deputy 
Mayor Edward Marquez to meet with him to gain 
a better understanding of the methods used to 
establish the County Attorney’s Office staff 
salaries.

Chairman Bovo noted concern over the large 
retirement benefits paid to CA employees, based 
upon their pre-retirement incomes.

Commissioner Heyman asked Mr. Cuevas, Ms. 
Jennifer Moon, Director, Office of Management 
and Budget and Deputy Mayor Marquez for a 
detailed breakdown of all CA employee salaries 
and fringe benefits, as well as whether fringe 
benefits were based upon collective bargaining 
unit status, or not.

Commissioner Heyman asked Mr. Cuevas and 
Deputy Mayor Marquez to determine the amount 
of money in outstanding liens placed by the 
Property Appraiser’s Office and why those liens 
were not being sold to generate income. 

In response to Chairman Bovo’s question whether 
the CA’s Office was subject to the five percent 
health care contribution, Mr. Cuevas responded 
that they were and that he gave it back in the 
spring of 2013 at a cost of approximately 
$277,000.

Page 39 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

40



Wednesday, June 25, 2014
Finance Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

ADJOURNMENT2

Chairman Bovo expressed his appreciation to staff 
and his colleagues for participating in these 
budget presentations.  He said these discussions 
provided him with a better insight of the budget 
process and that he would continue to work with 
Ms. Jennifer Moon on outstanding items.  He also 
expressed his appreciation to Board of County 
Commissioners (BCC) Chairwoman Sosa for her 
support during this process. 

Ms. Moon acknowledged BCC Chairwoman Sosa, 
Chairman Bovo and members of the County 
Commission for the opportunity to share 
information with them on the County budget.  She 
said that she anticipated the Budget Books would 
be released during the first week of July and that 
the Public Hearing prior to setting the millage 
rates was scheduled for July 15, 2014. 

There being no further business, the Finance 
Committee meeting adjourned at 3:42 p.m.

Report:

Page 40 of  40 Meeting Key 3533 - Printed on 8/8/2014

41


